

# A

الأمم المتحدة

Distr.  
GENERAL

الجمعية العامة



A/HRC/7/64/Corr.1  
17 March 2008

ARABIC  
Original: ENGLISH

مجلس حقوق الإنسان  
الدورة السابعة  
البند ١ من جدول الأعمال

## المسائل التنظيمية والإجرائية

انتخاب أعضاء اللجنة الاستشارية لمجلس حقوق الإنسان

مذكرة من إعداد الأمين العام

تصويب

في المرفق، يستعاض عن بيانات السيرة الذاتية للسيدة كاليوبي كوكا بالنص الوارد أدناه.

**Mrs. Kalliopi K. KOUFA**

(Nominated by the Government of Greece)

**Present functions:** Professor of International Law and International Organization, Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, Greece

Director of the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki (“UN Peace Messenger Award”)

Visiting Professor, LL.M. Program in Intercultural Human Rights, St. Thomas University, School of Law, Miami, Florida, USA

President of the Hellenic Inter-Ministerial Commission for the Implementation and Dissemination of International Humanitarian Law, Athens

Member of the European Commission for Democracy Through Law, (The Venice Commission), Council of Europe

**Education**

American College “Anatolia”, Thessaloniki

Faculty of Economic and Social Sciences, University of Geneva, Switzerland

The Graduate Institute of International Studies / Institut Universitaire de Hautes Etudes Internationales (Geneva)

Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, School of Law, Thessaloniki

The Hague Academy of International Law, The Hague, Netherlands (doctoral scholarship)

International Law Seminar, Twenty-seventh session of the UN International Law Commission, Geneva (UN scholarship)

The Salzburg Seminar Interdisciplinary Course on the Protection of Human Rights, Harvard University (1978), Salzburg, Austria (Fullbright scholarship)

Visiting scholar in a number of USA Universities (Fullbright scholarship)

**Degrees**

“Licence ès Sciences politiques - Mention études internationals” University of Geneva and The Graduate Institute of International Studies, Geneva

LL.B. (with distinction), Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, School of Law

Post Graduate Diploma and LL.M. in Public Law (with honours), Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, School of Law

Ph.D. in Public International Law (with honours), Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, School of Law

### **Academic Career**

- 1970 - 1976 Assistant and Senior Assistant of the Chair of Public International Law, Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, School of Law
- 1976 - 1982 Lecturer in Public International Law and European Law, Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, School of Law
- 1982 - 1984 Reader in Public International Law and the Law of European Organizations, Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, School of Law
- Since 1984 Professor (with tenure) in Public International Law and International Organization, Department of International Studies, Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, School of Law
- 1987 - 1993  
1996 - 1997 Head of the Department of International Studies, Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, Law School
- 1987 - 1993  
1996 - 1997 Member of the Governing Board of the Aristotle University of Thessaloniki, School of Law
- 1989 - 2003 Coordinator of a network of European Universities' educational programmes in the framework of the "Socrates/Erasmus" academic exchange programmes of the EU

### **Teaching assignments**

Public International Law; Introduction to the Organization of International Society; International and European Institutions; Law of the United Nations; International Human Rights Law; International Humanitarian Law, International Criminal Law

### **Other academic activities**

- 1970 - 1984 Research Associate and Tutor, Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki
- 1984 - 2000 Head of the Department of Studies and Research and Member of the Governing Board of the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki

- 1986 - 1990 Member of the European team of scholars and academics involved in a major study and research programme of the European Science Foundation (Strasbourg, France) concerning minorities in Europe, which resulted in the publication of a series of eight volumes under the general title “Comparative Studies on Governments and Non-dominant Ethnic Groups in Europe, 1850-1940”. Contributed, in particular, both as a writer and as a member of the editorial board, to vol. V, entitled “Ethnic Groups in International Relations”
- 1990 - 1992 Director of the Institute for Balkan Studies, Thessaloniki
- Since 1993 Director of the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki
- 1997 - 2000 President of the Institute for Balkan Studies, Thessaloniki
- Since 2002 Visiting Professor, LL.M. Program in Intercultural Human Rights, St. Thomas University, School of Law, Miami, Florida, USA
- Organized and/or participated as a lecturer in Greece and abroad in several international seminars, panels, courses and conferences on general international law, and in particular human rights law, international humanitarian and criminal law, as well as international relations dealing with the international protection of human rights (Thessaloniki, Athens, Leningrad, Salzburg, Freiburg, Geneva, Paris, New York and Miami)

**Other professional activities**

- 1969 - 1970 Legal Assistant at the Court of First Instance, Thessaloniki
- 1970 - 2000 Advocate and Member of the Bar Association of Thessaloniki
- 1994 - 1996 Member of the Interdisciplinary Commission for Peace Education, Institute of Education and Peace, Thessaloniki
- 2000 - 2004 Member of the Greek National Commission for Human Rights (Consultative National Institution)
- Since 2005 President of the Hellenic Inter-Ministerial Commission for the Implementation and Dissemination of International Humanitarian Law

### **United Nations and Other International Organizations (OSCE, Council of Europe)**

- Since 1990 Member of the Greek delegations to the Third and/or Sixth Committees of the UN General Assembly, as well as to the UN Commission on Human Rights, Geneva
- 1990 - 1991 Representative of Greece to the Open-ended Working Group for the drafting of the UN Declaration on the Rights of Persons Belonging to National or Ethnic, Religious and Linguistic Minorities
- 1993 Member of the Greek delegation to the Vienna World Conference on Human Rights
- 1994 - 2001 Alternate, UN Sub-Commission on Prevention of Discrimination and Protection of Minorities / UN Sub-Commission on the Promotion and Protection of Human Rights
- 2002 - 2006 Member of the UN Sub-Commission on the Promotion and Protection of Human Rights and Member of its Working Group on Contemporary Forms of Slavery (2004)
- 1998 - 2004 Special Rapporteur on “Terrorism and Human Rights” of the UN Sub-Commission on the Promotion and Protection of Human Rights
- 2003 Vice-President of the UN Sub-Commission on the Promotion and Protection of Human Rights
- 2005 - 2006 Chairperson of the UN Sub-Commission’s Working Group for the Elaboration of Principles and Guidelines Concerning the Promotion and Protection of Human Rights When Combating Terrorism
- 1990 - 1991 Member of and adviser to the Greek delegations to the Conference on Security and Cooperation in Europe (CSCE), Human Dimension Meetings in Copenhagen, Moscow, and the CSCE Meeting of Experts in National Minorities in Geneva
- Since 2006 Member of the European Commission for Democracy Through Law (The Venice Commission), Council of Europe

### **Academic and professional associations**

Member, Association des Anciens de l’Institut Universitaire de Hautes Etudes Internationales, Geneva

Member, American Society of International Law

Founding Member and Secretary-General, Association of Attenders and Lecturers of the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki

Member, Intergroup of Higher Education AAA, The Hague

Founding member and member of the Governing Board, Hellenic Society of International Law and International Relations

Founding member, Vice-President and member of the Governing Board, International Law Association - Greek Branch

**Honours**

Honourary Diploma of the Hellenic Club of Writers (1998)

Titular member for life of the Bar Association of Thessaloniki by Decree (2001)

**Languages**

English, French, German, Greek

**Main Publications**

**(a) Books**

Universalism and regionalism in international society, (doctoral thesis), Thessaloniki, 1975

The United Nations and regional international organization, “Jus Gentium”, No. 16, Thessaloniki, 1976

“Act of State” in international relations, vols. I-II A (professorial thesis), Thessaloniki, 1981-1984

Domestic jurisdiction and the United Nations Charter, University Courses, Thessaloniki, 1985

Introduction to the organization of international society, University Courses, Thessaloniki 1988

International protection of minorities and the United Nations Organization, Series of lectures published by the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki, 1993

Terrorism and Human Rights, Series of lectures published by the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki, 2007

**(b) Articles and other studies**

“The role of international treaties in contemporary international relations and the new Soviet ‘Law on the procedure for the conclusion, execution and denunciation of international treaties of the USSR’”, To Syntagma, 1979, pp. 458-483

“Aspects of consular relations between Greece and the United Kingdom: Considering consular amenability to local jurisdiction in the light of customary international law, the consular convention between the United Kingdom and Greece, and the Vienna Convention on consular relations”, Hellenic Review of International Relations, vol. I, No. II, 1980, pp. 375-414

“Consular immunities”, Armenopoulos, vol. 35, 1981, offprint, pp. 1-29

The United Nations Organisation forty years after its creation”, Armenopoulos, vol. 39, 1985, offprint, pp. 1-43

“A tribute to the UN fortieth anniversary”, Dikaion kai Politiki, vol. 11, 1986, pp. 157-164

“Evolution of international law: ‘International legislation’ through the United Nations”, Thesaurus Acroasium, vol. XVI, 1986, offprint, pp. 1-25

“International conflictual situations and their peaceful adjustment”, Thesaurus Acroasium, vol. XVIII, 1988, offprint, pp. 1-51

“The legislative role of the UN General Assembly in contemporary international law”, Armenopoulos, vol. 42, 1988, offprint, pp. 1-59

“The Compulsory Exchange of Populations Between Greece and Turkey: the Settlement of Minority Questions at the Conference of Lausanne, 1923, and its impact on Greek-Turkish Relations”, (co-authored with C. Svolopoulos), contribution to Ethnic Groups in International Relations, European Science Foundation / New York University Press, 1991, pp.275-308

“The UN Declaration on the Rights of Persons Belonging to National or Ethnic, Religious and Linguistic Minorities”, in Contemporary World Problems and the Responsibility of the Scientist, Institute of Education and Peace, Thessaloniki, 1994, pp. 163-176

“Elimination of Racial Discrimination and the Role of the United Nations Sub-Commission on Prevention of Discrimination and Protection of Minorities”, International Geneva Yearbook, vol X, 1996, pp. 44-63

“Evolutionary trends in the protection of human rights within the framework of the United Nations”, Hellenic Review of European Law, Special issue, 1997, pp. 51-77

“The Protection of Human Rights and the ‘1503’ Procedure”, in The United Nations at the Threshold of the post-Cold War Era, Publication of the Hellenic Society of International Law and International Relations, 1998, pp. 303-329

“The link between human rights and terrorism”, in K. Koufa (Ed.), 50<sup>th</sup> Anniversary of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, 1948-1998, Thessaloniki, 1999, pp.53-62

“Human rights and terrorism in the United Nations”, in G. Alfredsson and M. Stavropoulou, eds. Justice Pending: Indigenous Peoples and Other Good Causes (Essays in honour of Dr. Erica-Irene Daes), M. Nijhoff Publishers, The Hague, 2002, pp. 203-218

“Les incidences du terrorisme sur les droits de l’homme et les libertés fondamentales - une approche internationale”, Programme communautaire MEDA DEMOCRATIE, Projet de formation: Tunisie-Maroc : Juges et Avocats, acteurs de promotion de l’Etat de droit, Thessaloniki, 2001, pp. 1-9

“Le terrorisme et les droits de l’homme, in Le Droit International Face au Terrorisme : Après le 11 Septembre 2001, CEDIN-Paris I, No. 17, 2002, pp. 189-201

“UN Terrorism, Counter-Terrorism and Human Rights”, Trento Meeting on International Cooperation and Counterterrorism (2004), ed. G. Nesi, University of Trento, Italy, Asghate Publishing Ltd., 2006

### **(c) United Nations Publications**

Working paper on “Terrorism and human rights” submitted in accordance with Sub-Commission resolution 1996/20 (UN doc. E/CN.4/Sub.2/1997/28 of 26 June 1997

Preliminary Report on “Terrorism and human rights” (UN doc. E/CN.4/Sub.2/1999/27 of 7 June 1999

Progress Report on “Terrorism and human rights” (UN doc. E/CN.4/Sub2/2001/31 of 27 June 2001)

Second Progress Report on “Terrorism and human rights” (UN doc. E/CN.4/Sub.2/2002/35 of 17 July 2002)

Additional Progress Report on “Terrorism and human rights” (UN doc. E/CN.4/Sub.2/2003/WP.1 and Addenda 1 and 2)

Final Report on “Terrorism and human rights” (UN doc. E/CN.4/Sub.2/2004/40 of 25 June 2004)

Working paper entitled “A preliminary framework draft of principles and guidelines concerning human rights and terrorism”, (UN doc. E/CN.4/Sub.2/2004/47 of 11 August 2004)



Expanded working paper entitled “A preliminary framework draft of principles and guidelines concerning human rights and terrorism”, (UN doc. E/CN.4/Sub.2/2005/39 of 22 June 2005)

Report of the sessional working group to elaborate detailed principles and guidelines, with relevant commentary, concerning the promotion and protection of human rights when combating terrorism, (UN doc. E/CN.4/Sub.2/2005/43 of 9 August 2005)

Second expanded working paper entitled “An updated framework draft of principles and guidelines concerning human rights and terrorism”, (UN doc. A/HRC/Sub.1/58/30 and Corr.1 of 3 August 2006)

Second report of the sessional working group to elaborate detailed principles and guidelines, with relevant commentary, concerning the promotion and protection of human rights when combating terrorism, (UN doc. A/HRC/Sub.1/58/26 of 25 August 2006)

**(d) Editor and/or co-editor**

- |             |   |
|-------------|---|
| 1980 - 1987 | Co-editor “Hellenic Review of International Relations” (periodical of the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki)  |
| 1990 - 2000 | Editor, “Balkan Studies” (periodical of the Institute for Balkan Studies, Thessaloniki)   |
| 1994        | Editor, “Die Balkanländer in Europa der Gegenwart, Fünftes Symposium, Organisiert in Thessaloniki (am 22.23, Mai 1992) vom Institut für Balkan Studien und der Südosteuropa-Gesellschaft München”, Institute for Balkan Studies, vol. 256 |
| Since 1994  | Editor, “Thesaurus Acroasium” (Annual Collected Courses of the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki)   |
| Since 1998  | Editor, “Contemporary Monographs of International Law and International Relations” (Research Publications of the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki)                                       |
| 1999        | Editor, “50 Years of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights 1948-1998” (Collection of studies published by the Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki)                                      |
| Since 2003  | Editor, “Working Papers on International Law and Policy”, Institute of International Public Law and International Relations of Thessaloniki   |

-----